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Rermt Lstng

FAR Interest
Area

Permit/Well/Lease County/Basin Gross Acres Working Net Revenue

United States Of America

Texas

Loveless Langford 3HT Hardeman 80 18.25 13.0416

Bligh Loveless Hardeman 80 16.25 12.1875

Hardeman 80 Royalty 0.3021

Bigh Loveless Hardeman 80 11.375 8.8547

Bligh
Loveless Hardeman 80 15.2917 SWD

Trio Loveless Hardeman 125 20.00 15.00 undeveloped

JD McClellan 12 Hardeman 165 20.8203 16.1194

Corda Joe McClellan Hardeman 40 4.7694 3.6584 BPO

7.0413 5.401 APO

Mulkey -B Hardeman 40 2.7969 9.5977

Trio Parker Hardeman 80 16.7677 12.8158

Trio-Crawford Drieschner Wilbarger 80 24.7509 18.3075

Trio-Crawford Drieschner Wilbarger 80 Royalty 0.5455

Thompson-Sawyer Library Hardeman 80 25.9103 19.6918

Bligh Woftord Unit Hardeman 60 5.75 11.8125

Sitta Hardeman 40 5.5173 4.2069

Phillips Grange D-i Hardeman 40 11.25 8.6906

Pursley Grange Hardeman 40 2.10 1.6328

BBThrash Hardeman 80 5.1383 3.751

Barnes Lipscomb 646 20.00 16.00

Lindsey Trust 109 A-i Dawson 440 4.64 35726

Talkington Dawson 160 6.6667 5.1339

Rainosek1 Lavacca 640 21 .5766 16.1658

Rainosek Lavacca 640 20.00 15.00

Bujnoch1 Lavacca 640 20.00 15.20

Vaquero Victoria 320 9.00 6.6877

Vaquero Victoha 320 9.00 6.21

NE Wailer WaIler 16 593 34.00 25.50 undeveloped

Louisiana

Pecan_Lake_Held

Miami Corp Cameron 280 Royalty 0.7089

Miami Corp 2D Cameron 280 Royalty 0.7089

Miami Corp Cameron 280 Royalty 0.4431

Miami Corp 3D Cutler Cameron 280 Royalty 0.4431

Miami Corp Cameron 280 Royalty 0.0071 undeveloped

Miami Corp Cameron 280 5.3167 4.0472 undeveloped

Ada Field

Youngblood Bienville 6.75 4.9894

Johnson Alt Bienville 160 10.41 7.7625

Hooks iAlt Bienville 160 5.8524 4.4806

Canterbury lAlt Bienville 160 12.00 9.1873

Clear Branch

Terry Ewing No Jackson 425 9.375 0.69375

Ivan_Field

Gray BA SUNUSA Bossier 720 1.65 ARC

Kitchens Bossier 720 11.125 7.8242

Royalty 0.1953

Placid Bossier 12.2587 8.7476

Lake Raccourci

SL 3258 Lafourche 200 5.2238 4.3056



Pem Lstng

FAR Interest

Working Net Revenue

Isle St Jean Charles

Dupont 38 Terrebone 364 5.4072 4.1958

Dupont 38 Terrebone

South Grosse Tete

364 5.4072 4.174

Schwing Ibenjfle 360 19.30 13.725

Kicker

BPO

undeveloped

Marceaux Vermilion 017 5.00 3.25 BPO

undeveloped

California

Eagle Kings 4360 15.00 11.7 undeveloped

Wyoming/Montana

Lund /Plentywood Sheridan 10 800 2.08 undeveloped

Indian Tree Unit-Lois Campbell 600 Royalty 0.0615

Indian Tree Unit 6A Campbell 600 0.4591 0.4027

Canada

Kakwa Alberta 640 15.00 completion AMI

Clear Hills Alberta 480 15.00 completion

Wild River Alberta 920 29.1214 earning

AMI

undeveloped

CNOOC
China Beibu Gulf 20 287 5.00 Back-in 51%

Australia

WA-254-P Offshore Carnarvon 80 028 10.7143

EP 104 Canning Basin 160 406 8.00

T/1 Bass Basin 967 000 0.0938 Royalty

Senegal

Sangomar-Rutisque MSGB Basin 851 059 90.00

Notes

The complexity of lease holdings in the United States of America is such that it is simplistic to reduce holdings to tabular form The

summary presented is reasonable tabulation of leases at the reporting date Actual lease and well holdings are subject to Before and

After Payout variations various farmout terms provisions of operating agreements and may be subject to depth restrictions

Il AMI means an area of mutual interest applies to additional acreage

Ill Permits and concessions held in countries other than the USA are subject to various
royalties Government impositions and

participation agreements

Permit/Well/Lease

Lake Long

Area

County/Basin Gross Acres

SL 328 well No.1 Lafourche 325 4.09375 2.9066

SL 328 well No.6 Latourche 325 31.375 23.0899

SL 328 well No.7 Latourche 325 16.375 2.408

SL 328 well No.2ST Latourche 325 12.625 9.4496

SL 328 well No.27 Latourche 325 1.375 1.1246

SL 328 well No.30 Latourche 325 1.375 1.1 246

SL 328 well No.28 Latourche 325 1.375 1.136

SL 328 well No.8 Latourche 325 1.375 1.1 246

SL328 well No.9 Lafourche 325 10.1875 7.2941



Corporate Governance Statement

Australian Stock Exchange Listing Rule 4.10.3 requires companies to disclose the extent to which they have complied with the

best practice recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council

This statement summarises the corporate governance practices adopted by the Board of Directors and their compliance with

the Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations Where best practice recommendation has not been followed

the non-compliance has been noted and justification provided

First Australian Resources Limiteds FAR objective is to achieve the best practice in corporate governance commensurate

with the Companys size its operations and the industry within which it participates

The Company and its controlled entities together are referred to as FAR in this statement

Pnnciple

Lay solid foundations for management and oversight

The Board operates in accordance with the broad principles set out below

Role of the Board

The Board is responsible for corporate strategy implementation of business plans allocation of resources approval of budgets

and capital expenditure and the adherence to Company policies The Board is also responsible for compliance with the Code

of Conduct overseeing risk management and internal controls and the assessment appointment and removal of senior

executives and the company secretary

Evaluation of Executive Performance

review of executive performance is conducted by the CEO on an annual basis and report made to the full Board

Principle

Structure the Board to add value

Board Composition

The Board comprises two independent non executive Directors and one executive Director acting in the capacity as both

Chairman and chief executive officer This approach does not follow ASX Best Practice Recommendations 2.2 and 2.3 as Mr

Evans is both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The FAR Boards preference is that notwithstanding the Recommendation the status quo is retained because

There is an inherent acceptance by investors that Mr Evans was responsible for founding the Company and establishing

FARs United States Office and US operations that provide the oil and gas sales revenue stream of the group

Mr Evans status within FAR has been key component to establishing deal flow and the quality of projects being offered

Given that it is the view of ASX Corporate Governance Council that an executive chairman is not able to provide an independent

review of the performance of management the Board has

Established clear protocols for handling conflicts of interest

Provided the opportunity for the non executive Directors to meet without any executive present on an annual basis on the

day of the AGM and encouraged discussion between non executive directors at any other time as required

Established an undertaking to review this position should the Company achieve market capitalisation exceeding

$100 million



Corqorae Governance Statement

Directors Independence

The Board has based its determination of Directors independence on the criteria specified in the ASX Best Practice

Recommendations The Board considers that Charles Cavness and Albert Brindal satisfy the criteria in that they

Are not substantial shareholders of the Company

Have not been employed in an executive capacity within the last three years with the exception of Mr Brindal who has

served as Company Secretary during this period Given that Mr Brindal has performed this role as an external contractor

rather than as an employee and prior to being appointed to the Board had never been involved in any decision making in

respect of FARs strategy or operations the Board believes that this has not impaired his independence

Have not been principal of material professional advisor within the last three years

Are not material supplier or customer of the Company

Do not have material contractual relationship with the Company In this context fees paid to Mr Cavness for professional

legal services from time to time as disclosed in the financial statements are not considered to be of level or nature that

would impair independent judgement

Have no other interests or business relationships likely to materially interfere with the Directors ability to act in the best

interests of the Company

In addition to facilitate independent decision making each Director of the Company has the right to seek independent

professional advice in the furtherance of their duties as Directors at the Companys expense provided they notify the

Company beforehand

The constitution of the Company provides that Directors shall not retain office for more than three calendar years or beyond

the third annual general meeting following election without submitting to re-election by shareholders

Details of the members of the Board their skills experience expertise qualifications and length of service are set out in the

Directors Report

Meetings

The Board aims to hold at least formal meetings in each calendar year corresponding where practical with the release to the

ASX of the Quarterly Activity Reports The number of meetings held is disclosed separately in the Directors Report

Board Committees

The Board does not have separately established committees dealing with audit nomination remuneration risk management

and disclosure functions This constitutes departure from the ASX Best Practice Recommendations and is dealt with more

fully as follows

Nomination Committee

The Board does not have separate nomination committee ASX Best Practice Recommendation 2.4 provides that the Board

should establish nomination committee notwithstanding recognition that for smaller Boards the same efficiencies may not

be apparent from formal committee

In the absence of nomination committee the Board has the following processes in place

The full Board of FAR undertakes an annual review of its size and composition to ensure an appropriate mix of expertise

and experience The current Board has significant experience within the resources sector Where vacancy exists for

whatever reason or where it is considered that the Board would benefit from the services of new Director with particular

skills the Board will select appropriate candidates with relevant qualifications skills and experience

Performance Evaluation

performance review is conducted by the full Board on an annual basis



Corporate Covernance Statement

Principle

Promote Ethical and responsible decision making

The Company has corporate code of conduct code that has been fully endorsed by the Board and applies to all Directors

and employees The code is evolving with the Company and is updated as necessary to ensure it reflects an appropriate

standard of behaviour and professionalism to maintain confidence in the Groups integrity

In summary the Code requires that at all times all Company personnel act with the utmost integrity objectivity and in compliance

with the letter and the
spirit

of the law and Company policies

The Companys policy in relation to dealings in the Companys securities applies to Directors employees and consultants Any

intended market transactions must be notified to the chairman in advance to ensure that the market remains fully informed at

all times prior to any contemplated transaction The code and the Companys share trading policy are discussed with new

employees

The code and the securities trading policy are available for review on the Companys website

Principle

Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

Audit Committee

Recommendation 4.1 provides that the Board should establish an audit committee The Board of FAR has not formed an audit

committee As presently constituted the full Board of FAR consists of oniy three Directors and has formed the view that it is

more efficient for the Board as whole to deal with matters that would otherwise be dealt with by an audit committee The

Board has however taken the following steps to safeguard the integrity of financial information

The chief financial officer is required to state in writing to the Board that the Companys financial reports present true and

fair view in all material respects of the Companys financial condition and operating results and are in accordance with

relevant accounting standards

The chief financial officer is formally qualified in the field of financial reporting and is member of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Scotland

Personnel responsible for generating financial reports within the group must hold appropriate tertiary qualifications in the

field of accounting and finance and are required to undertake continuing professional education

policy has been adopted to constitute formal audit committee upon the group reaching market capitalisation of S100

million or upon reaching annual sales exceeding A$1O million

Principle

Make timely and balanced disclosure

The Company has written policies and procedures on information disclosure that focus on continuous disclosure of any

information concerning the group that reasonable person would expect to have material effect on the price of the Companys

securities These policies and procedures also include the arrangements the Company has in place to promote communication

with shareholders and encourage participation at general meetings These policies are available on the Companys website

During the
drilling

of well the Companys policy is to report progress at least weekly and where possible to provide immediate

release of any significant well data

The chairman and Company Secretary have been nominated as persons responsible for communications with the ASX This

role includes responsibility for ensuring compliance with the continuous disclosure requirements in the ASX Listing Rules and

overseeing and co-ordinating disclosures to the ASX analysts brokers shareholders the media and the public

ASX releases are posted on the Companys website as soon as practical after receiving ASX acknowledgement of release to

the market



Corporate Governance Statement

Principle

Respect the rights of shareholders

All shareholders who request one receive copy of the annual report In addition electronic communication is readily acoessible

to shareholders who may register their email address via mechanism on the Companys website

In addition to the Annual Report information is communicated to shareholders through

Continuous disclosure in the form of public announcements to the ASX

Quarterly reports announced to the ASX

Investor briefings and presentations

Notices of all meetings of shareholders and explanatory notes as applicable to resolutions

Publication of the above material on the FAR website

Shareholders are invited to ask questions at the Annual General Meetings

Principle

Recognise and manage risk

The board defines risk to be any event that if it occurs will have material impact on the ability of the Company to achieve

its objectives Risk is considered across the financial operational and organisational aspects of the Companys affairs As

practical matter active projects and drilling and completion reports are discussed between Board members on very

regular basis

Where exploration and associated financial risk is assessed as high FAR has an established policy of farming out risk to other

industry participants In certain instances risk is contained at the front end by requiring exploration wells to be based on

turnkey contracts particularly where deep targets or over pressured environments are present

Given its early stage of development the financial and organisational risks are considered moderate as there are simple financial

and organisational structures in place Success of the Company is dependent upon exploration success and continued

funding of exploration activities

The Company has tenements in foreign jurisdictions including Senegal China and the United States of America There are risks

that arise in relation to the conduct of exploration activities in these foreign jurisdictions which the Company has identified and

for which it has internal policies and procedures The Company in accordance with its corporate code of conduct complies

with all legal requirements of any jurisdiction in which it operates

With the exception of the Senegal project on which the Company has been appointed operator during the farm-out

negotiations the Company does not operate and as part of its environmental risk identification ensures that it is aligned with

expehenced operators in each segment in which it conducts business In addition to Operator Insurance covering such

events as well blow-outs FAR carries additional insurance cover across all wells in which it has an interest within the Urnted

States of America

FAR is junior resource entity at the exploration and early growth stage Exploration for oil and gas is high risk undertaking

Accordingly the investment risk profile of the FAR is high and investment in FAR is considered to be speculative

ASX Best Practice Recommendation 7.1 provides that the Board should establish policies on risk oversight

and management



Corporate Governance Statement

The Company does not have formal written policies on risk oversight and management However as matter of practice the

board is responsible for risk oversight and management Day to day responsibility is delegated to the chief executive officer

who is responsible for

Identification of risk

Monitoring risk

Communication of risk events to the board and

Responding to risk events with board authority

Prior to the directors making the directors declaration in the financial report the chief executive officer and chief financial officer

are required to state to the Board in writing that the Companys risk management and internal compliance and control system

is operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting risks

Principle

Remunerate fairly and responsibly

Remuneration Policy

FARs remuneration policy is disclosed in the Remuneration Report included in the Directors Report

Disclosure of Remuneration

FAR follows the practice of disclosing the amount of remuneration and all monetary and non-monetary components for each

Director and each of the highest paid executives during the reporting period

Remuneration Committee

Recommendation 8.1 provides that the Board should establish remuneration committee The Board of FAR has not formed

remuneration committee The full Board considers those matters that would usually fall to remuneration committee as it is

considered no efficiencies would be achieved by establishing separate committee given the Companys size and the number

of personnel

The broad policy calls for executives to be remunerated on terms that are competitive with those offered by entities of

similar size within the same industry Packages are reviewed annually by the executive chairman and allowance is made as

minimum for CPI adjustment to maintain purchasing power

As an explorahon Entity performance outcomes are uncertain notwithstanding endeavour As such remuneration packages

are not linked to profit performance Present policy is to reward successful performance via incentive options that are priced

on market conditions at the time of issue

policy has been adopted to constitute formal remuneration committee upon the group reaching market capitalization of

$100 million or upon reaching annual sales exceeding A$10 million



DRectors Report

The directors of First Australian Resources Ltd submit herewith the Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 December

2008 In order to comply with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001 the directors report as follows

Directors

The directors of the Company in office during or since the end of the financial year are

Michael John Evans Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr Evans was the founding Chairman of the Company and primarily responsible for its public flotation in 1985 He is

Chartered Accountant holding two business degrees and has been involved in the natural resources sector since 1981 He

has considerable experience in Australian public companies particularly in relation to financing both in Australia and the United

States of America

Charles Lee Cavness Non-Executive Director

Mr Cavness resides in Denver Colorado United States of America and is an Attorney at Law admitted to practice before

the Supreme Courts of the States of Texas Alaska and Colorado Mr Cavness has served in the legal departments of two

large American oil companies Pennzoil Corporation and Arco Mr Cavness has spent his entire career in the oil industry and

consequently has experience in the US Latin America Europe and the Middle East Mr Cavness has been director of the

Company since 1994

Albert Edward Brindal Non-Executive Director

Mr Brindal holds an MBA Bachelor of Commerce Degree and is Fellow Member of the Certified Practicing Accountants in

Australia Mr Brindal has been director of the Company since 2007 and served as the Company Secretary since 2000

Warwick Robert Grigor Non-Executive Director resigned April2008

Mr Grigor is graduate of the Australian National University having completed degrees in law and economics He has spent

number of years in the stockbroking sector as senior mining analyst prior to establishing Far East Capital Limited specialist

corporate advisory business Mr Grigor was director of the Company since 1995 and resigned on April 2008

All directors held office during and since the end of the financial year unless otherwise stated

Directorships of other listed companies held by directors in the years immediately before the end of the financial year are

as follows

Evans Monaro Mining NL December 2004 to October 2007

Company Secretaries

Cohn John Harper

Mr Harper is member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland and holds BAHons degree in Accounting and

Finance Mr Harper also serves as the Chief Financial Officer of the Consolidated Entity

Albert Edward Brindal

See above for details

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company and of the Consolidated Entity are

exploring for and producing oil and gas and

the acquisition and sale of oil exploration and production interests

Operating Result

The loss of the Consolidated Entity for the year ended 31 December 2008 after income tax was $9665758 2007 loss

$3713500



Drectors Reqot

Dividends

The directors recommend that no dividend be paid for the year ended 31 December 2008 nor have any amounts been paid or

declared by way of dividend during the year

Review of Operations

review of the oil and gas operations of the Company and the Consolidated Entity is set out in the Operations Review section

of this Annual Report

Changes in State of Affairs

During the financial year there was no significant change in the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity

Subsequent Events

Since the end of the financial year the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance not disclosed elsewhere in the

financial statements or notes thereto that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the Consolidated Entity

the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity in subsequent financial years

Future Developments

The Consolidated Entity intends to continue its present range of activities during the forthcoming year In accordance with

its objectives the Consolidated Entity intends to participate in number of exploration and appraisal wells and new projects

and may grow its exploration effort and production base by farmin or new lease acquisitions Certain information concerning

future activity is set out in the Operations Review Section Other information on likely developments and the expected results

of operations have not been included in this report because in the opinion of the directors it would prejudice the interests of

the Consolidated Entity

Remuneration Report Audited

This Remuneration Report which forms part of the Directors Report sets out information about the remuneration of First

Australian Resources Limiteds directors and its senior management for the year ended 31 December 2008

The directors of the Company and Consolidated Entity during the year were

Michael John Evans Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Charles Lee Cavness Non-Executive Director

Albert Edward Brindal Non-Executive Director

Warwick Robert Grigor Non-Executive Director resigned April 2008

The term senior management is used in this Remuneration Report to refer to the following persons Except as noted the

named persons have held their current position for the whole of the financial year and since the end of the financial year

Cohn John Harper Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

June Ann Athing Administration Manager Australia

Roseann Adessa Administration Manager USA

Remuneration Policy

The broad policy calls for executives to be remunerated on terms that are competitive with those offered by entities of similar

size within the same industry Packages are reviewed annually by the executive chairman

As an exploration entity performance outcomes are uncertain notwithstanding endeavour As such remuneration packages

are not linked to profit performance Present policy is to reward successful performance via incentive options that are priced

on market conditions at the time of issue The number of options granted is at the full discretion of the board

The Consolidated Entity does not have remuneration committee however the remuneration of Directors is dealt with at full

board level



Dnectons Report

Relationship Between the Remuneration Policy and Company Performance

As noted above remuneration packages are not linked to profit performance

The tables below set out summary information about the Consolidated Entitys earnings and movements in shareholder wealth

for the five years to 31 December 2008

31 December 31 December

2005 2006

3778664 3861149 2679260 3086217

906 778 4382426 3713500 9665 758

906 778 4382426 3713500 9665758

31 December

2008tç
Share price at start of year 6.3 6.2 12.0 12.0

Share price at end of year 6.2 12.0 14.0 12.0 2.8

Dividend

Basic and diluted oss per share 1.74 0.36 1.18 0.82 1.90

Director and Executive Remuneration

Remuneration packages contain the following key elements

Short-term employee benefuts salary/fees and non monetary benefits including provision of motor vehicles and health

benefits

Post employment benefits superannuation

Share based payments share options granted as disclosed in note 30 of the financial statements

Other Benefits

The directors and the identified Consolidated Entity executives received the following amounts as compensation for their

services as directors and executives of the Company and Consolidated Entity during the year

13614

Revenue 543 887

Net loss before tax 132 116

Net loss after tax 132 116

Post- Share-based

Short-term employee benefits employment payment

Evans

Gayness

Brinda

Grigor Ii

Harper

Atling

Adessa

33 000

34 086

31186

126 000

96 228

82 768

consisting of

options

807

12600

35 200

33 000

34 086

33 993

138 600

131 428

96 382

Total 697237 39407 99148 835792

Resigned April 2008 Includes public relations fees of $25000 disclosed further in note 32



Dectos Reqot

Options Granted to Directors and Executives

Whilst the Consolidated Entity does not have formal ownership-based compensation scheme for employees including

directors of the company certain share options have been granted to executives in accordance with resolution of shareholders

at the ACM of the Company held on 28 May 2007 Each executive share option converts into one ordinary share of the

Company on exercise No amounts have been paid or are payable by the recipient upon receipt of the options The options

neither carry rights to dividends nor voting rights Options may be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date

of their expiry

During and since the end of the financial year no share options over shares in First Australian Resources Limited were granted

to the directors and executives of the Company and Consolidated Entity as part of their remuneration

The following table reconciles the outstanding share options granted to executives at the beginning and end of the

financial year

Balance at beginning of the financial year

Exercised during the financial year

Granted during the financial year

Balance at the end cf the financial year 500 000

The outstanding share options are exercisable at $0.15 on or before 31 July 2010

Bonus Payments

During the year no bonus payments were made to directors and executives of the Consolidated Entity

In the prior year bonus payment of US$10000 was made to Atling and Adessa These bonus payments were made

at the discretion of the Board

Employment Contracts

There are no written contracts in place between directors and executives and the Consolidated Entity with the exception of Mr

Harper who is employed under standard employment contract with four week notice period

Post Share-based

employment payment

MJEvans 217596 16148

Gayness 45 202

Brindal ii

Grigor

Harper iv

AAtling

Adessa

consistuig of

options

52 500

49 231

85 532

78 289

120 164

700

923

37 300

758 908

126 202

405 000

81 000

121 500

72 000

11 720

18584

53%

64%

69%

57%

20%

Total 528350 46452 165087 703500 443389

176 700

126 154

134 552

120 87324 000

ii Appointed 19 December 2007

iii Includes public relations fees of $22500 disclosed further in note 32

iv Appointed August 2007

500 000 7865313

7865 313

500 000

500 000



Dectors Reqot

Directors Shareholdings

The following table sets out each directors relevant interest in shares and options over shares of the Company at the date of

this report

Fufly Paid Options Over

Ordinary Ordinary

Evans 225 450 000 000

Gayness 1150 000 000 000

AEBrIndal 29000

Directors Meetings

The following table sets out the number ot directors meetings held during the financial year and the number of meetings

attended by each director while they were director

Board of Directors Meetings

Attended

Share Options

Details of share options over ordinary shares issued by the Company during the period together with details of options

converted during the period and on issue at 31 December 2008 are set out in note 19 to the financial statements and form

part of this report

Indemnification of officers and auditors

During or since the financial year the Company has not indemnified or made relevant agreement to indemnify an officer or

auditor of the Company or of any related body corporate against liability incurred as such an officer or auditor In addition

the Company has not paid or agreed to pay premium in respect of contract insuring against liability incurred by an officer

or auditor

Environmental Regulations

The Entity is subject to significant environmental regulation in respect of drilling for and production of oil and gas Approvals

licences hearings and other regulatory requirements are performed by the operators of each permit or lease on behalf of joint

ventures in which the Entity participates Compliance by operators with environmental regulations is governed by the terms of

respective joint operating agreements The Entity does not operate any of its producing assets

The Entity is potentially liable for any environmental damage from its activities the extent of which cannot presently be quantified

and would in any event be reduced by insurance carried by the Entity or operator As at the date of this report the Company

has not been notified of any breach

Evans

Cavness

Brindal

Grigcr
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Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

At the date of this report the directors are not aware of any proceedings on behalf of the Company or Consolidated Entity

Non-Audit Services

Details of amounts paid or payable to the auditor for audit and non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor are

outlined in note 34 to the financial statements

As there were no non-audit services during the year the directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by

the auditor or by another person or firm on the auditors behalf is compatible with the general standard of independence for

auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001

Auditors Independence Declaration

The auditors independence declaration is included on page 31 of the annual report

Signed in accordance with resolution of the Directors made pursuant to Section 2982 of the Corporations Act 2001

On behalf of the Directors

Evans

Director

Perth 30 March 2009
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DeIoitte
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

AB.N 74490121060

Woodside Plaza

240 St Georges Terrace

Perth WA 6000

GPO Box A46

Perth WA Australia

Tel 61 9365 7000

The Board of Directors Fax 61 0893657001
www.deloiite.com.au

First Australian Resources Limited

Suite Bi Tempo Offices

431 Roberts Road

Subiaco WA 6008

30 March 2009

Dear Board Members

AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION TO FIRST AUSTRALIAN
RESOURCES LIMITED

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 am pleased to provide the

following declaration of independence to the directors of First Australian Resources Limited

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of First Australian Resources

Limited for the financial
year

ended 31 December 2008 declare that to the best of my
knowledge and belief there have been no contraventions of

the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation

to the audit and

ii any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit

Yours sincerely

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Ross Jerrard

Partner

Chartered Accountant

Member of

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

iahilitv limited iiv ceheme annrnved under Pruifescinnal Standarda euislajinn
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10 tte
Deloitte Touche

ABN 74 490 121 060

Woodside Plaza

Level 14

240 St Georges Terrace

Perth WA 6000

GPO Box A46

Independent Auditors Report
Perth WA 6837 Australia

DX 206

to the members of First Australian Tel 61 0893657000
Fax 61 9365 7001

Resources Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of First Australian Resources Limited which

comprises the balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 and the income statement cash flow statement

and statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date summary of significant

accounting policies other explanatory notes and the directors declaration of the consolidated entity

comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the years end or from time to time during the

financial
year as set out on pages 34 to 76

Directors Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards including the Australian Accounting

Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2001 This responsibility includes establishing and

maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that

is free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error selecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances In

Note the directors also state in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of

Financial Statements that compliance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial

Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report comprising the financial statements and notes

complies with International Financial Reporting Standards

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit We conducted

our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards These Auditing Standards require that we

comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the financial report The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report whether due to fraud or error

In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entitys

preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the entitys internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for

our audit opinion

Member of

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Liability limited by scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Deloitte

Auditor Independence Declaration

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations

Act 2001

Auditors Opinion

In our opinion

the financial report of First Australian Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations

Act 2001 including

giving true and fair view of the company and consolidated entitys financial position as at 31

December 2008 and of their performance for the year ended on that date and

ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards including the Australian Accounting

Interpretations and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and

the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in

Note

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 26 to 28 of the directors report for the

year ended 31 December 2008 The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and

presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act

2001 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report based on our audit

conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards

Auditors Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of First Australian Resources Limited for the
year

ended 31

December 2008 complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Ross Jerrard

Partner

Chartered Accountants

Perth 30 March 2009
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The directors declare that

in the directors opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and

when they become due and payable

in the directors opinion the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations

Act 2001 including compliance with accounting standards and giving true and fair view of the financial position and

performance of the Company and the Consolidated Entity and

the directors have been given the declarations required by s.295A of the Corporations Act 2001

At the date of this declaration the company is within the class of companies affected by ASIC Class Order 98/1418 The nature

of the deed of cross guarantee is such that each company which is party to the deed guarantees to each creditor payment in

full of any debt in accordance with the deed of cross guarantee

In the directors opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the Companies to which the ASIC

Class Order applies as detailed in note 27 to the financial statements will as group be able to meet any obligations or

liabilities to which they are or may become subject by virtue of the deed of cross guarantee

Signed in accordance with resolution of the directors made pursuant to s.2955 of the Corporations Act 2001

On behalf of the Directors

Evans

Director

Perth 30 March 2009





Income Statement

for the nanca year ended December 2008

Note

Revenues

Other income 8a

Direct operating costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Exploration expense

Abandonment expense

Impairment of loans to subsidiaries

Finance costs

Employee benefits expense

Consulting expense

Foreign exchange loss /gain

Other expenses

Loss before income tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to members

of First Australian Resources Limited

833 543

8b 718506

836 846

290 223

730224

656 868

580 946

23 287

565 888

866 716

342 198

167 610

884 184

534 366

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

3086217 2679260 403005 698949

642

971 030

837 291

584 282

28 999

653 255

28 636

599 659

892 327

942 665

708 124

381 508

474 788

499 774

913 601

491 321

347 188

924

672 330

9a

21

665 758 713 500 174 900 685 300

665 758 713 500 174 900 685 300

665 758 713 500 174 900 685 300

Earnings per share

Basic loss cents per share 22 1.90 0.82

Diluted loss cents per share 22 .90 0.82

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 41 to 76



Baance sheet

at tar

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Other financial assets

Other

Total Current Assets

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Other financial assets

Property plant and equipment

Oil and gas properties

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Provisions

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provisions

Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued Capital

Reserves

Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

11

13

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

28a

10

11

12

761 829

425 501

29 174

71 001

493 536

316 264

28 626

22 446

6535417

59 366

26618

10794

927 569

19581

26618

21 667

7287505 8860872 6632195 7995435

21 473 12043085 11 589201

426418 691 282 55338 61 715

24477652 23774277 14437525 13713848

24 925 543 24 465 559 26 535 948 25 364 764

32213048 33326431 33168143 33360199

422318 478552 849223 230179

5931 282 5506797 5390000 5001 706

167031 127646 167031 127646

7520631 6112995 6406254 5359531

14400 40752 29928

14400 40752 29928

7535031 6153747 6406254 5389459

24678017 27172684 26761889 27970740

67 261 038 62 546 989 67 261 038 62 546 989

854 981 397 939 783 535 531 535

45 438 002 35 772 244 42 282 684 36 107 784

24 678 017 27 172 684 26 761 889 27 970 740

18

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 41 to 76



Statement of Changes EqCty

thc financH year rdcd La eL
Consolidated

Reserves

Equity Foreign
Total

component currency
Attributable to

on convertible translation Accumulated equity holders

Share capital Option Reserve notes reserve Total Losses of the parent

53639210 331 705 496330 236 277 591 758 32 058 744 22172224
Balance at

January 2007

Exchange differences

arising on translation

ot foreign operations

Net income recognised

directly in equity

Profit Loss for the period

Total recognised

income and expense

Share based payments

Issue of shares

Share issue costs

Balance at

31 December 2007

Balance at

January2008

Exchange differences

arising on translation of

foreign operations

Net income recognised

directly in equity

Profit Loss

for the period

Total recognised

income and expense

Share based payments

Issue of shares

Share issue costs

Balance at

31 December 2008

897319 897319 897319

897319 897319 897319

3713500 3713500

897319 897319 3713500 4610819

703500 703500 703500

9466531
9466531

558 752
558 752

62546989 1035205 496330 1133596 397939 35772244 27172684

62546989 1035205 496330 133596 397939 35772244 27172684

205 042 205 042 205 042

2205042 2205042 2205042

665 758 665 758

2205042 2205042 9665758 7460716

252000 252000 252000

5078000
5078000

363951
363951

67261 038 287205 496330 071 446 2854981 45438002 24678017

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 41 to 76



Statement of Changes

Company

Eqwty
nt

Balance at

January 2007

Exchange differences

arsing on translation of

foreign operations

Net income recognised

directly in equity

Profit Loss for the period

Total recognised

income and expense

Share based paymerts

ssue of shares

Share ssue coats

Balance at

31 December 2007

Balance at

January 2008

Exchange fferences

ansing on trarsiation of

foreign operations

Net income recognised

directly in equity

Profit Loss

for the penod

Total recognised

income and expense

Share based payments

Issue of shares

Share ssue costs

Balance at

31 December 2008

Foreigt

component etrfency

on converttble rtranaton

notes reserve

53639210 331 705 496 330

lotal

Attrbutable to

eqwty holders

o1 the parent

828 035 31 422 484 23 044 761

685 300 685 300

685 300 685 300

703 500 703 500 703 500

9466531 9466531

558 752 558 752

62 546 989 035 205 496 330 531 535 36 107 784 27 970 740

62 546 989 035 205 496 330 531 535 36 107 784 27 970 740

174 900 174 900

6174900 6174900

252 000 252 000 252 000

5078000 5078000

363951 363951

67 261 038 287 205 496 330 783 535 42 282 684 26 761 889

Notes to the finanoia statements are noluded on pages 41 to 76



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers

Payments to supphers

Interest and other costs of finance paid

Net cash used in operating activities 28e

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Payments for oil and gas properties

Payments for property plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of oil and gas properties

Proceeds from sale of well equipment

Amounts advanced to related parties

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares

and other equity securities

Payment for share issue costs

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash provided by financing activities

NET DECREASE/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents

at the beginning of the year

Effects of exchange rate changes

on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

at the end of the financial year 28a

Cash flow Statement

for ear ye er rob

2655504 1915326 4650 46937

714 579 2349270 358 946 297 533

577 646 602 263 549 697 554 094

636 721 036 207 903 993 804 690

383 595 692 847 374 200 681 764

6269053 12829067 790771 7546643

45 021 533 262 19 155 277

5674

3112 3543

807 123 142 940

927 367 12 660 265 242 849 12 013 096

5078000 9466531 5078000 9466531

294 309 558 752 294 309 558 752

83207

4700484 8907779 4783691 8907779

863 604 788 693 363 151 910 007

8493536 13338619 7927569 12843217

131 897 56390 29001 5641

6761829 8493536 6535417 7927569

Notes to the financial statements are induded on pages 41 to 76



Notes to the Pnanca Statements

General information

First Austraian Resources Limited the Company is listed public compary ncorporated in Australia and operating in Australia

Senegal Canada Chna and the USA

rst Australian Resources Limiteds registered office and its princpal place of business at the date of this report are as follows

Suite Bi Tempo Offices

431 Roberts Road

Subiaco

WA 6008

Tel 08 6363 8779

Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards

In the current year the Group has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations ssued by the Australian

Accounting Standards Board the AASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual reporting period

This has not affected the amounts reported for the current or prior years

At the date of authorisat on of the financial report the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effect ye

AASB 101 revised September 2007 Presentaton of Financial Statements and AASB 2007-8

Amendments to Austral an Accounting Standards aria ng from MSB 01 and /7ASB 2007-10

Further Amendn-ents tc Austral an Accounting Standards arising from MSB 101 January 2009 31 December 2009

AASB 123 Borrow ng Costs revised and AASB 2007 Amendments to Australian Accounting

Standards arsng from AASB 123 January 2009 31 December 2009

AASB 2008 Amendments to Austra ian Accounting Standard Share Based Payments

Vesting Conditions and Cance at ens January 2009 31 December 2009

AASB Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programr-s July 2008 31 Devember 2009

MSB Business Combinations rev sed and AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements revised and MSB 2008 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards

arising from AASB and AASB 27 July 2009 31 December2010

AASB 2008-2 Amendments to Austral an Accounting Standards Puttab nancial

Instruments and Obligations Aris ng on Liqu dation January 2009 31 December 2009

ASB 2008 AASB 2008

AASB 2008 Amendments to Austral an Accountng Standards arising from the Annua January 2009 31 December 2009

Improvements Project and AASB 2008-6 Further Amendments to Australian Account ng and AASB 2008 and A6SB 2008

Standards ar sing from the Annua Improvements Project July 2009 31 December 2010

The rectors note that the impact of the initial application of the Standards and Interpretations is not yet known or is not

reasonably estimable These Standards and Interpretations wI be first applied in the financial report of the Consolidated Entity

that relates to the annual reporting period beginning on or after the effective date of each pronouncement

AASB Operat ng Segments and AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Austra an Accounting

Standards arsing from AASB

Effective for Expected to

arniual reporting be initaly applied

periods beglnlIng in the financial

on olafter year ending

January 2009 31 December 2009



Notes to the Fnanca Statements

December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The financial report is general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act

2001 Accounting Standards and Interpretations and complies with other requirements of the law The financial report includes

the separate financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Entity

Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards A-IFRS Compliance with

the A-.IFRS ensures that the financial statements and notes of the Company and Consolidated Entity comply with International

Financial Reporting Standards IFRS

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 30 March 2009

Basis of preparation

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets

and financial instruments Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets All amounts are

presented in Australian dollars unless otherwise noted

Where necessary comparatives have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year presentation

The financial report has been prepared on the going concern basis of accounting which contemplates the continuity of normal

business activity realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business

In the Directors opinion at the date of signing the financial statements there are reasonable grounds to believe that the

Consolidated entity and Company will be able to pay their debts as and when they fall due

In forming this opinion the directors have considered the following pertinent matters

At 31 December 2008 the Consolidated Entity had net current liabilities of $233126 and for the year ended 31 December

2008 the Consolidated Entity reported net loss and cash outflow from operating activities

As detailed in note 33 on 23 January 2009 placement of 28850000 shares was completed at 2.6 cents per share

raising $750100 before costs

As detailed in note 16 during February 2009 $2987115 before costs was raised through the issue of 6638033 new

convertible notes The existing convertible notes maturing on 31 January 2009 were repaid in full on this date resulting in

cash outflow of $5390000 The repayment of the existing convertible notes was included in determining the net current

liabilities position above

As detailed in note 33 on 26 March 2009 the Company announced placement of 70000000 shares at cents per

share to raise $3500000 before costs

The Consolidated Entity and Company balance sheets remain strong as at 31 December 2008

In addition to the capital and operating lease commitments disclosed in notes 23 and 25 the directors have considered

the timing and quantum of all discretionary expenditure

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial report

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities including special

purpose entities controlled by the Company its subsidiaries referred to as the Group in these financial statements Control

is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the

effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate

Where necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line

with those used by other members of the Group



Notes to the Hnanc Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation continued

All ntra group transactions balances income and expenses are iminated fu on consolidation In the separate fnancial

statements of the Company intro-group transact ons common control transactions are generally accounted for by reference

to the existing consolidated book value of the items Where the transaction value of common control transactons differ from

their consolidated book value the difference is recognised as contribution by or distribution to equity participants by the

transacting entities

Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded in tially at fair value net of transaction costs Subsequent to in tia recognition borrow ngs are measured

at amort sod cost with any dfference between the initial recogr sed amount and the redempon value being mcognised in

profit and loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest rate method

Borrow ngs are classified as current abi es unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at east 12 months after the balance sheet date

Borrowing Costs

Borrow ng costs directly attributab to the acquisition construction or production of qualifying assets which are assets that

necessarily take substantial perod of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets

until such time as the assets are substantial ready for their intended use or sale nvestment income earned on the temporary

nvestment of spec tic borrowings pending their expenditure on qua itying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligib

for capital sation

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the perod in which they are incurred

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand deposits held at call with nancial inst tutions other short term highly iquid

investments with origina maturities of three months or less that are read ly convert ble to known amounts of cash and which

are subject to an insignif cant risk of changes on value net of outstanding bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within

borrow ngs in current liabi ites on the ba ance sheet

Cash tows have been al ocated among operating investing and financing activ ties wh ch appropr ately classify the Consolidated

Entitys activities

Fair value estimation

The far vaue of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognitcn and measurement or for

disclosure purposes

Techniques such as est mated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for certain financia instruments The

far value of forward exchange contracts where applicable is determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance

sheet date

The nom cal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair

values The fair value of nanc al liabilities is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash ows at the current market

interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments

Employee benefits

General

Employee benefit expenses arising in respect of wages and salaries non monetary benefits annual leave long sen/ce leave and

other types of emp oyee benefts are charged to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred Contributions

to superannuation funds by entities wthin the Group are charged to the ncome statement when due superannuation

scheme is not ma ntained on behalf of employees



Notes to the nanca Ste emen

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Employee benefits continued

Wages and salaries annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months

of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees services up to the reporting date and are

measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilit es are settled when the leave is taken and measured at the

rates paid or payable

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value

expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected

unit cred method Consideration given to expected future wage and salary levels experience of employee departures and

periods of service Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government

bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match as closely as possible the estimated future cash outflows

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

financial asset is classified in this category if acquired prncipally for the purpose of selling in the short term and certain

criteria are satisfied as outlined in AASB 139 Fancial lnstrurrients Recognition and Measurement Fnancial assets held for

trading purposes are classified as current assets and are stated at fair value with any resultant gain or loss recognised profit

or loss

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities

that the Groups management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturty and are initially held at fair value net of

transactions costs

Bills of exchange classified as held to maturity are recorded at amortised cost using the effective nterest method less

impairment with revenue recognised on an effective yield basis The effective interest method method of calculating the

amortised cost of financia asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the

rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financia asset or where appropriate

shorter period

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active

market They arise when the Group provides money goods or services directly to debtor with no intention of selling the

receivable They are included in current assets except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet

date which are classified as non-current assets Loans and recevables are included in receivables in the balance sheet Trade

recevables loans and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost less impairment

Acquisition of assets and goodwill

The purchase method of accounting used to account for all acquisitions of assets including business combinations

regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given

shares issued or abilties incurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition

Where equity instruments are issued in an acquisition the value of the instruments is their published market prce as at the

date of exchange un ess in rare circumstances it can be demonstrated that the published price at the date of exchange is an

unre iable measure affair value Transaction costs arising on the issue of equty instruments are recognised directly in equity
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Acquisition of assets and goodwill continued

Identifiable assets acquired and abilities and contingent liabilit es assumed in business combination are measured initally at

their fair va ues at the acquisition date irrespective of the extent of any minority interest The excess of the cost of acquisition

over the fair vaue of the Consolidated Entitys share of the identifiable net assets acquired recorded as goodwil and not

amortised but tested for impairment annualy and whenever there is an indication that the goodwill may be impaired Any

impairment is recognised immediate in
profit or loss and is not subsequently reversed If the cost of acquisition is less than

the fair value of the business combnat on the difference is recognised directly in the income statement

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their

present va ue as at the date of exchange The discount rate used is the Entitys incremental borrowing rate being the rate at

which similar borrowing could be obta ned from an independent financier under comparable terms and condit ons

Financial instruments issued by the Company

Debt and equity instruments

Debt and equity nstruments including ordinary shares and options are classifed as either abilities or as equity in accordance

with the substance of the contractual arrangement

Transaction costs on the issue of equity instruments

Transacrion costs arising on tne issue of equ ty instruments including new shares and options are recognised oirectly in equity

as reduction of the proceeds of the equity instruments to which the costs relate Transaction costs are the costs that are

incurred directly in connection with the issue of those equity instruments and which would not have been incurred had those

instruments not been issued

Interest and dividends

Interest and dividends are classified as expenses or as distrbutons of profit consistent with the balance sheet classification

of the related debt or equity nstruments or component parts of compound instruments The Consolidated Entity does not

presently pay dividends

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and subsequently at the higher of the amount

recognised as provision and the amount initia ly recognised less cumulafve amortisaton in accordance with the revenue

recognition policies described in note 3q

Financial liabilities

Financial iabilities are classified as either fnancia liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financia liabi ities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at far value through profit or loss are stated at fair value with any resu tant gain or loss recognised in proft

or loss The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability Fair value is

determined in the manner described in note 29

Other financial liabilities

Other financ al liabilities including borrow ngs are initially measured at fair value net of transaction costs

Other financial liabil ties are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method with interest expense

recognsed or an e0ective yied basis

The effective interest method is method of caculating the amortised cost of financial
liability

and of allocating interest

expense over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments

through the expected life of the financial liabil ty or where appropriate shorter period
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Consolidated Entity has present obligation the future sacrifice of economic

benefits is probable and the amount of the provision can be measured re iably Provisions are not recogn sod for future

operating osses

The amount recognised as provision is the best est mate of the consideration required to settle the present ob igation at

reporting date taking nto account the rsks and uncertaintes surroundng the obligation Where provision is measured

using the cashflows estmated to sette the present obligation its carrying amount is the present value of those cashflows

When some or all of the economic benefits requred to settle prey sion are expected to be recovered from third party the

receivable is recogn sod as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery II be received and the amount of the receivable can

be measured reliably

The Consolidated Entity recognises any obligations for removal and restoration that are incurred during part cular period as

consequence of havng undertaken explorat on and evaluation activ ty Restoration and abandonment obligations are reviewed

annually taking into account estimates by independent petroleum engineers

Goods and services tax

Revenues expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax GST except

where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority it is recognised as part of the cost of

acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense or

ii for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST

The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the taxation authority included as part of receivables or payables

Cash fows are ncluded in the cash flow statement on gross basis The GST component of cash flows arising from nvesting

and financng activties which recoverable from or payable to the taxaton authority is classified as operating cash flows

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the fnancial statements of each of the Groups entities are measured using the currency of the prmary

economic environment in which the Entity operates the functional currency

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dolars which is First Australian Resources Limiteds

functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transact ons are translated into the funct onal currency usng the exchange rates prevailing at the dates

of the transactions Foreign excrange gains and losses resuting from trie settlement of succ transactions and from The

translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

income statement

Group companies and foreign operations

The results and financial position of al the Group ent ties none of which has the currency of hyperinflationary economy that

have funct onal currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

Assets and liabi ities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet

Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates unless this is not reasonable

approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates in which case income and expenses

are translated at the dates of the transactions and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised as separate component of equity
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currency translation continued

Group corn pan/es and foreign operations continued

On consolidation exchange diferences arsing from the translat on of any net investment foreign entities and of borrowings

and other currency nstruments desgnated as hedges of such investments are taken to shareholders equity When foreign

operaton is sold or borrowings repaid proportionate share of such exchange differences are recognsed the income

statement as part of the gain or loss on sa

Payables

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Consolidated Entity becomes obliged to make future

payments resu ng from the purchase of goods and sen/ices The amounts are unsecured and usually pad within 30 days

of recognition

Income tax

Current tax

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit

or tax loss for the period It is caculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

reporting date Current tax for current and pror perods is recognised as liability or asset to the extent that it is unpaid

or refundabie

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arsng from

differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilit es in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base of

those items

In principle deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are recognised to

the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts be ava lable against which deductible temporary differences

or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised However deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the

temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial recognition of assets and liab lities other than as result of

business combination which affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit Furthermore deferred tax lability is not

recognised in relat on to taxable temporary fferences arising from goodwil

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments subsidiaries and joint ventures

except where the Consolidated Entity is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probabe that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with these investments and interests are only

recognised to the extent that it is probable that there wil be sufficient taxable profits against which to uti ice the benefts of the

temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods when the asset and

iabi ty giving rse to them are realised or settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by reporting date The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would

fol ow from the manner wh oh the Consolidated Entity expects at the reporting date to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabI ties

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the

Company/Consolidated Entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on net basis

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax is recogn sed as an expense or income the income statement except when it relates to items

credited or debited directly to equity in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity or where it arises

from the nitia accounting for business combination in which case it is taken into account the determination of goodwill

excess



Notes to the Hnano Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Income tax continued

Tax consolidation

The Company and all its wholly-owned Australian resident Entifes are part of tax consolidated group under Australian

taxation law Prst Austra ian Resources Limited is the Head Entity in the tax consolidated group tax funding arrangement has

not been fina ised between Entities within the tax consolidated group Tax expense/income deferred tax liabilit es and deferred

tax assets arising from temporary differences of the members of the tax consolidated group are recognised in the separate

financial statements of the members of the tax consolidated group using the stand alone taxpayer approach by reference to

the carrying amounts in the separate financial statements of each entity and the tax values applying under tax conso idation

Current tax iabilities and assets and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and relevant tax credits of the members

of the tax consolidated group are recognised by the Company as head-entity in the tax consolidated group

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets and operations

Interests in
jointly

controlled assets and operations are reported in the financal statements by including the Consolidated

Entitys share of assets employed in the joint ventures the share of liabil ties incurred in relat on to the joint ventures and the

share of any expenses incurred in relation to the joint ventures in their respective classification categories

Leases

Leases are classifed as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee All other leases are class fied as operating leases

Assets held under fnance leases are initially recognised at their fair value or if lower at amounts equal to the present value

of the minimum lease payments each determined at the nception of the lease The corresponding liability to the lessor is

included in the balance sheet as fnance lease obligation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduct on of the lease obligation so as to achieve constant

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liablity Finance charges are charged directly against income in accordance with

the Consolidated Entitys general policy on borrowing costs Refer to note 3c

Finance leased assets are amortised on diminish ng value basis over the term of the lease or where it is likely the Consolidated

Entity will obtain ownership of the asset the estimated useful life of the asset

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on straight line has over the lease term except where another

systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed

Revenue recognition

Sale of oil and gas and related products

Revenue from the sale of oil and gas and related products is recognised when the Consolidated Entity has transferred to the

buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership and the amounts can be measured reliably In the case of oil this usually

occurs at the time of
lifting

Interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on time proportionate basis that takes into account the effectve eld on the nancial asset

Exploration and evaluation costs

Exploration and evaluation costs are accumulated in respect of each area of interest or geographical segment in accordance

with AASB Exploration For and Evaluation of Mineral resources and are disclosed as separate class of assets Costs are

either expensed as ncurred or partially or fully capitalised as an exploration and evaluation asset provided exploration titles are

current and at least one of the following conditions are satisfied
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Exploration and evaluation costs continued

the exploration and evaluation expenditures are expected to be recouped through development and exploitation of the area

of interest or by future sale and

ii exploration and evaluation activities in the area of interest have not at the reporting date reached stage which permits

reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable reserves and active and significant

operations in or in relation to the area of interest are continuing

Exploration and evaluation assets are classified between tangible and intangible and are assessed for impairment when facts

and circumstances suggest the carrying amount may exceed recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised in the

income statement

Expenditures relating to development of oil and gas leases are shown separately and not included in exploration and

evaluation assets

Property plant and equipment and oil and gas properties

Plant and equipment equipment under finance lease and oil and gas properties including carried forward development

expenditure are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment Cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the item In the event that settlement of all or part of the purchase consideration is deferred

cost is determined by discounting the amounts payable in the future to their present value as at the date of acquisition

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as separate asset as appropriate only when it

is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Consolidated Entity and the cost of the item

can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period

in which they are incurred

All tangible assets have limited useful lives and are depreciated/amortised using the diminishing value method over their

estimated useful lives taking into account estimated residual values with the exception of carried forward development

expenditure in the production phase and plant and well equipment which are amortised on units of production method based

on the ratio of actual production to remaining proved reserves as estimated by independent petroleum engineers and

finance lease assets which are amortised over the term of the relevant lease or where it is likely the Consolidated Entity will

obtain ownership of the asset the life of the asset

Depreciation is calculated on diminishing value basis so as to write off the net cost or other revalued amount of each asset

over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value as follows

Vehicles 22.5%

Furniture fittings and equipment 20%

Telephones 30%

Computer equipment 40%

Plant and well equipment Based on units of production

Oil and gas properties Based on units of production

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease or estimated useful life whichever is the shorter using

the diminishing value method

The estimated useful lives residual values and depreciation method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period and

adjusted if appropriate

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount These are included in the

income statement When revalued assets are sold it is Group policy to transfer the amounts included in other reserves in

respect of those assets to retained earnings
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs

to sell and value in use In assessing value in use the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset

For the purposes of assessing impairment assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable

cash flows cash generating units Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount the carrying

amount of the asset cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss is recognised in profit or

loss immediately

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses the carrying amount of the asset cash-generating unit is increased to the

revised estimate of ts recoverable amount but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset cash-generating

unit in prior years reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments with employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of

the equity instruments at the grant date Fair value is measured by use of Black Scholes model The expected life used in the

model has been adjusted based on managements best estimate for the effects of non-transferability exercise restrictions

and behavioural considerations Further details on how the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions has been

determined can be found in note 30

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on straight-line basis

over the vesting period based on the Groups estimate of shares that will eventually vest

The above policy is applied to all equity-settled share-based payments that were granted after November 2002 that vested

after January 2005 No amount has been recognised in the financial statements in respect of the other equity-settled shared-

based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with other parties are measured at the fair value of the goods and services

received except where the fair value cannot be estimated reliably in which case they are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments granted measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service

For cash-settled share-based payments liability equal to the portion of the goods or services received is recognised at the

current fair value determined at each reporting date

Segment reporting

business segment is group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and

returns that are different to those of other business segments geographical segment is engaged in providing products or

services within particular economic environment and is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments

operating in other economic environments

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company excluding any costs

of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the

after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted

average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Groups accounting policies which are described in note management is required to make judgments

estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to

be reasonable under the circumstance the results of which form the basis of making the judgments Actual results may differ

from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods

Critical judgements in applying the entitys accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements including those involving estimations that management has made in the process

of applying the Groups accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements

Oil and Gas Reserve Estimates are made in determining the depletion charge to be levied against producing oil and gas

properties during the period These estimates are provided by Independent Petroleum Engineers These estimates are also

used in determining the fair value of oil and gas properties for the purpose of impairment testing

The Consolidated Entity recognises any obligations for removal and restoration that are incurred during particular period as

consequence of having undertaken exploration and evaluation activity Future restoration and abandonment obligations

are reviewed annually taking into account estimates by independent petroleum engineers Presently the Consolidated Entity

does not have any large scale production facilities that would have material impact in relation to future restoration costs

and accordingly there are no provisions for future restoration costs This position may change should the Consolidated Entity

embark on more substantial development project



Segment Information

During the current and prior year the Consolidated Entity operated predominantly in one business segment that consisted

of exploration development and production of hydrocarbons Geographically the Consolidated Entity operates in the USA
Australia Canada Senegal and China Offices are maintained in Australia and in the USA where operations comprise the

operations of First Australian Resources Inc Segment accounting policies are the same as the Consolidated Entitys policies

described in Note Segment results are classified in accordance with their use within geographic segments regardless of

legal Entity ownership

Revenue

Oil and gas saes

Other revenue

Inter-segment revenue

Iota of segments

im nations

Una located

Conso dated Revenue

Segment Result

Elim nat ens

Consc dated

50 441 360 3735987 3672 371 206 599 665 758

665 758

Segment Assets

Elim nations

Consolidated

13703529 726996 18737618 940 136 3126381 44234660

12021 612

32213048

Segment abtites

minations

Other Segment

Information

7456263 19678974 7178891 34314128

26 779 097

535 031

Notes to the nano Statements

2673581 2673581

6811 6811

680 392

405 825

3086217

Acquiston of

segment assets

Exp oration expensed

Deprec ation and

amortisat on of

segment assets

048 281 17 134 280 459 940 854 537 554 824 282

360 599299 4038947 2198240 7836846

28 636 687 870 716 506



Notes to the Finanma Statements

Revenue

Oil and gas sales

Other revenue

Inter segment revenue

Iota of all segments

Elim nations

Of allocated

Consolidated Revenue

677 280

679 260

Segrrent Result

minations

Consoldated

44 187 941 628 2819802 96 884 4767 3713 500

3713500

Segment Assets

Elim nations

Consoiaateo

11 655 248 710221 20994734 426 696 2128734 44915632

11 589201

33326431

Other Segment

Information

Acquisition ot

segment assets

Exp oration expensed

Deprecation and

amortisation of

segment assets

Segment Information continued

963 133 963 133

38847 38847

001 980

Segment Liabil ties

Eliminations

148629 6290415 15100374

605 519 911 262

941 628

1191 736

624 260

3179611 24719029

18 565 282

6153747

465978 13336641

1580946

162 146

15058

23 287 633 581 656 868
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Saes Revenue

Oil and gas revenues

Interest Revenue

Bank deposits 405 825

Other Revenue 6811 38847 6811 38847

3086217 2679260 403005 698949

Finance costs

Interest on cans overdrafts and jeans

Interest on convertibe notes

Iota nterest expense

Accretion expense

Other nance costs

539 000 539 000 539 000 539 000

567 365 585 885 539 000 539 000

388 294 312 528 388 294 312 528

15371 15188 15371 15188

971 030 913 601 942 665 866 716

Accretion expense represents the unwinding of the discount on the convertible notes which are sciosed in note 16

Loss for the year

Gains and Losses

Loss for the year from continuing operation has been arrived at after crediting/charging the follow ng gains and losses from

both continuing and discontinued operations

Gain/foss on disposal of property plart and equipment

Gain/foss on disposal ot ci and gas propert as

Revenue

An analysis of revenue for the year from continuing operations is as follows

2673581 1963133

677 080 396194 660102

850
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Loss for the year continued

Other Expenses

Loss for the year from continuing operations includes the following expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Property plant equipment

Oil gas properties

Impairment of non-current assets

wholly owned controlled entity debt

exploration costs expensed

Property plant equipment

Oil gas properties

Operating lease rental expenses

Rental expense on operating lease

Employee benefit expense

Post employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

Share based payments-equity settled

Other employee benefits

Income Taxes

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Tax expense/income comprises

Current tax expense/income

Tax losses not brought to account

Company

130781 121 469 28636

585 725 535 399

716 506 656 868 28 636

23 287

23 287

5892327

382 403

454 443 580 946 599 659 565 888

836 846 580 946 599 659 565 888

176548 89586 119192 46219

100 639 166 706 100 639 166 706

703 500 703 500

736 652 621 115 607 485 471 992

837291 491 321 708124 342198

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

899 727 114 050 852 470 405 590

2899727 114050 852470 405590

Total tax expense/income
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Income Taxes continued

Income tax recognised in profit or loss continued

The prima fade income tax expense on pre-tax accounting profit from operations reconciles to the income tax expense in the

financial statements as follows

The tax rate used in the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate of 30% payable by Australian corporate entities on

taxable profits under Australian tax law There has been no change in the corporate tax rate when compared with the previous

reporting period No adjustment has been made for the incremental impact of the USA federal income tax rate which is

marginally higher at 35% for the purpose of this disclosure note as the impact is not considered significant with respect to the

operations of the Consolidated Entity

Income tax recognised directly in equity

There were no current and deferred amounts charged directly to equity during the period

Deferred tax balances

Deferred tax assets comprise

Tax losses in the United States

Tax losses in Australia

Deferred Tax liabilities comprise

Temporary Differences

Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the following

Consolidated

Opening Recognised in Recognised in Closing

Balance income equity Balance

2008

Oil gas properties 135 963 133 595 002 368

Property plant equipment 43 247 43 247

Receivables 148 574 148 574

Provisions 50 340 837 53 177

Total 937 049 179 679 757 370

Loss from operations 665 758 713 500 174 900 685 300

Income tax expense/income calculated at 3000 899 727 1114 050 852 470 405 590

Unused tax losses and tax offsets

not recognised as deferred tax assets 899 727 1114050 852 470 405 590

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

689 949

5067 421

757 370

378 270

558 779

937 049

4132575 3920159

4132575 3920159

5757370 5937049 4132575 3920159
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Income taxes continued

Consolidated

Opening Recognised in Recognised in Closing

Balance income equity Balance

2007

Explorabon evaluation and development expenditure

Receivables

Provisions

Total

3355953

148 574

34 858

3172521

116005

148 574

47 272

920 159

6135963

148574

50 340

5937049

331 258

148 574

50 109

4132575

Exploration evaluation and development expenditure

Receivables

Provisions

Total

Unrecognised deferred tax balances

The following deterred tax assets have not been

brought to account as assets

Tax losses in the United States net

Tax losses in Austraha net

Relevance of tax consolidation to the Consolidated Entity

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities have formed tax consolidated group with effect from

July 2007 and are therefore taxed as single entity from that date The head Entity within the tax consolidated group is First

Australian Resources Limited The members of the tax consolidated group are identified at note 27

2780010

15 482

764 528

Oil gas properties

Receivables

Provisions

Total

Opening Recognised in Recognised in Closing
Balance income equity Balance

215 253

837

212 416

Company

Opening Recognised in Recognised in Closing

Balance income equity Balance

2007

2275215 840790 4116005

148574 148574

31 790 15 482 47 272

094 851 825 308 920 159

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Tax consolidation

4640965 2275605

707 379 593 653 707 379 983 633

348 344 869 258 707 379 983 633
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10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

Interest receivable

Amount owing from controlled Entity

Less allowance for doubtful debts

850 100

850 100

425501 316264 59366 19581

The credit period on the sale of oil and gas varies between 30 and 60 days No trade receivables were past due at balance

date

Other receivables include amounts of $495246 2007 $495246 which were past due at balance date These amounts have

been provided for in full

11 Other financial assets

Current

The weighted average interest rate on the security deposit is 5.60% 2007 5.70%

Non-current

Unsecured loans to controlled entities

Allowance for doubtful debts

Other financial assets security deposit

Shares in unlisted controlled entities at cost less impairment

Consolidated Company
______

2008 2OO71Th008
__

25928997 17897238

14912834 7313486

11 016163 10583752

21 473 21 473

005 449 005 449

21 473 12043085 11 589201

The intercompany receivable is payable on demand and currently attracts no interest

The weighted average interest rate on the security deposit is nil%

12 Other current assets

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Other receivables

Less allowance for doubtful debts

41405 19581 41405 19581

525 583

495 246

495 246

495 246

513 207

495 246

495 246

495 246

668 046

668 046

Other financial assets security deposit 29 174

Consolidated Company

2008 2007

28 626 26618 26618

Prepayments 71 001 22 446 10794 21667
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Con oidÆted

Pat and Plant and

Equipment Equipment

146 994

13 Property Plant and Equipment

Gross carrying amount

Balance at January 2007

Additions

Disposals

Net foreign currency exchange differences

Balance at January 2008

Additions

Disposals

Net foreign currency exchange differences

Balance at 31 December 2008

Accumulated depreciationamortisation

and impairment

Baance at January 2007

sposals

Depreciation expense

Net foregn currency exchange differences

Balance at January 2008

Disposes

Depreciat on expense

Net foreign currency exchange differences

31 December 2008

NET BOOK VALUE

31 December 2007

31 December 2008

2005387 2005387 146994

464302 464302 12832 12832

55 564 55 564 19 484 19 484

210470 210470

2203655 2203655 140342 140342

157842 157842 22538 22538

399 797 399 797 17 145 17 145

505 273 505 273

2466973 2466973 145735 145735

604 718

54 029

121 469

159 785

1512373

16 867

130 781

74 824

19 484

23 287

1604718

54 029

121 469

159 785

512 373

16 867

130 781

74 824

19 484

23 287

78 627

16 866

28 636

78 627

16 866

28 636

414268 414268

2040 555 2040555 90397 90397

691 282 691 282 61 715 61 715

426418 426418 55338 55338
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14 Oil and gas properties

Less accumulated air ortisation

Balance at January

Amortisat ion expense

Disposa

Net foreign currency exchange differences

Balance at 31 December

Non-producing properties

Explorat on and eva uation expenditure

Balance at January

Additions

Explorat on expensed

Transfer to producing properties

Net toreign currency exchange diferences

Ba once at 31 December

Total oil and gas properties

225 235

867 162

13435364

The ult mate recoupment of balances carried forward in relation to areas of interest still in the exploration or evaluation phase

is dependant on successful development and commercial exp oitation or alternatively sale of the respective areas

Certain but not all of the producing properties are pledged as security in respect of loan facility granted to controlled

Entity At balance date the amount of the loan facility which is guaranteed by the Parent totalled $541 282

Producing properties

Capitalised development costs

Balance at January

Additions

Transfers from non-producing propert es

Disposals

Net foreign currency exchange differences

Balance at 31 December

10262141

531 296

9746714

950 485

101 929

244 505

292 482

10262141

8304142 8939451

585 725 535 399

87 950 240 794

2377 765 929914

11 179682 8304142

255 682 957 999

21 816278 13071 284 13713848 7584051

135 144 10 912 854 323 336 695 685

454 443 580 946 599 659 565 888

101 929

724 991 484 985

22221 970 21 816278 14437525 13713848

24477652 23774277 14437525 13713848
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Trade payables 538 007 263 915 96 359 15 542

884311 214637 752864 214637

1422318 478552 849223 230179

The average credit period on purchases is approximately 30 days No interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 30

days from the date of the invoice Thereafter interest may be levied on the outstanding balance at varying rates The Group has

financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe

16 Current borrowings

5390000 5001 706 5390000 5001 706

931 282 506 797 390 000 001 706

The loan facility comprises promissory note in favour of the American National Bank that is secured by certain not all oil

and gas properties The facility matures on 31 May 2009 and attracts floating interest rate of percent over the US prime

rate The Company First Australian Resources Ltd acts as guarantor on the loan agreement As result of the write-

down of certain exploration and evaluation expenditure at 31 December 2008 the net assets of the Companys American

subsidiary have fallen below the minimum value required by the covenants in the loan agreement This has no impact on the

classification of the loan in the financial statements Subsequent to the year end American National Bank has agreed to waive

this covenant

7700000 10% convertible notes were issued in February 2006 at an issue price of $0.70 per note Each note carried

coupon rate of 10 percent payable quarterly in arrears and was convertible into ordinary shares on or before 31 January

2009 by payment of 14 cents per share The Notes were quoted on the ASX Unconverted notes matured at 70 cents on 31

January 2009 and were repaid in full

Subsequent to the year end 6638033 new convertible notes were issued at 45 cents each raising $2987115 before costs

Each convertible note carries coupon rate of 15 percent payable quarterly in arrears and is convertible into 10 ordinary shares

on or before 31 January 2012 by payment of 4.5 cents per share The new convertible notes have been quoted on the ASX

Refer to note 33 for further details

17 Current Provisions

15 Trade and other payables

Other

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Secured loans

oan facitty 541 282 505 091

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Unsecured loans

convertible notes

Employee benefits 167031 127646 167031 127646
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18 Non-current provisions

Employee benefits

19 Issued Capital

Paid up capital

Ordinary fully paid shares at beginning of year

Shares allotted during the year

Share issue costs

Ordinary fully paid shares at end of year

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

14400 40752 29928

483 553 344 62 546 989 413 688 031 53 639 210

63475000 5078000 69865313 9466531

363951 558752

547 028 344 67 261 038 483 553 344 62 546 989

Changes to the then Corporations Law abolished the authorised capital and par value concept in relation to share capital from

July 1998 Therefore the company does not have limited amount of authorised capital and issued shares do not have

par value

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and the right to dividends

The following share placements were made during the financial year to raise working capital for the Company

An allotment of 38750000 shares at cents per share on 25 July 2008 raising $3100000 before issue expenses

ii An allotment of 13350000 shares at cents per share on 11 August 2008 raising $1 068000 before issue expenses

iii An allotment of 125000 shares at cents per share on 15 August 2008 raising $10000 before issue expenses

iv An allotment of 11250000 shares at cents per share on 31 October 2008 raising $900000 before issue expenses

Costs associated with the capital raisings above totalled $363951

At balance date the Company had the following options available to be exercised

1500000 unlisted options to subscribe for ordinary shares at 23 cents on or before 30 June 2009

2000000 unlisted options to subscribe for ordinary shares at 30 cents on or before 30 June 2010

9500000 unlisted options to subscribe for ordinary shares at 15 cents on or before 31 July 2010

6000000 unlisted options to subscribe for ordinary shares at 14 cents on or before March 2011

Consolidated and Company

2008 2008 2007 2007

Number Number
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20 Reserves

Option reserve

opening balance

options allotted

ba ance at end of year

The option reserve represents the value of options issued as share based

method For further details on options issued during the year see Note 30

ii Foreign currency translation reserve

balance at beginning of year

deficit on translation of overseas contro led Entity

balance at end of year

Exchange differences relating to the translation from functional currencies into Australian dollars are brought to account by

entries made directly to the foreign currency translation reserve as described in note

it Equity component on convertble notes

balance at beginning of year

issue ot convertib notes

balance at end of year

The equity component on convertible notes represents the equity component conversion rights on the issue of 7700000

unsecured convertible notes at 70 cents each on 14 February 2006 which raised $5390000 before issue costs Each note

carried coupon rate of 10 percent payable quarterly in arrears and was convertible into ordinary shares on or before 31

January 2009 by payment of 14 cents per share The convertible notes were quoted on the ASX Subsequent to the year end

the convertible notes have matured and been repaid in full

The equity component of $496330 was calculated as the face value of the note less the financial liability component at the

date of issue The financial
liability component at date of issue was calculated by discounting the face value of the convertible

notes together with the interest payable thereon over the maturity period followed by an allocation of the debt issue costs

between the debt and equity components on pro rota basis The discount rate used was lSo representing the directors

estimate of the interest rate applicable to debt instrument issued under similar terms with similar maturity period

035 205 331 705 035 205 331 705

252 000 703 500 252 000 703 500

287 205 035 205 287 205 035 205

1133596

205 042

payments based on the Black Scholes Valuation

236 277

897 319

071 446 133596

496330 496330 496330 496330

496330 496330 496330 496330
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21 Accumulated Losses

Balance at beginning ot financia year

Net Loss

Balance at end ott nancial year

22 Earnings Per Share

45 438 002 35 772 244 42 282 684 36 107 784

Bas earnings/loss per share

luted earnings loss per share

The earn ngs and weighted average number ot ordinary shares used

the ca culation ot has and diluted earnings per share are as follows

Earnings

Net loss tor the year

Weighted average number ot ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share

190 0.82

1.90 0.82

665 758 713 500

507662429 451 115477

$0.10 June 2008 un sted options

$0.1 25 to $0.15 Sept 2008 unlisted options

$0.18 June 2008 unlisted opt ons

$0.23 June 2009 unlisted options

$0.30 June 2010 un sted options

$0.15 July 2010 unlisted option

$0.14 March 2011 unlisted options

Convertible Notes

500 000

000 000

500 000

000 000

38 500 000

57 500 000

000 000

500 000

500 000

500 000

000 000

500 000

38 500 000

55 500 000

35 772 244 32 058 744 36 107 784 31 422 484

9665758 3713500 174 900 4685300

The fo lowing potential ordinary shares are not dilutive and are therefore excluded from the weighted average number of

ordinary shares used in the ca1culation of diluted EPS
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23 Commitments for expenditure

Oil and Gas Properties

Not longer than year

Longer than year and not longer than years

Longer than years

549304 3912527 78068 247244

The exploration oommitments reflect the minimum expenditure to meet the conditions under which the icences are granted

or such greater amounts that have been contractually committed These commitments may vary from time to time subject to

approval by the grantor of titles or by variation of contractual agreements The expenditure represents potential expenditure

which may be reduced by enterng into sale farmout or relinquishment of the interests and may vary depending upon the

results of exploration The estimate does not include possible expenditures on certain USA
drilling programs as the Entity has

the right but not obligation to participate in most USA wells Should expenditure not reach the required level in respect of each

area of nterest the Consoldated Entitys interest could be either reduced or forfeited

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments are disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements

24 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities

Guarantee on lease premises

The Company has entered nto an agreement in which it has provided guarantee of $1 7000 for Sanori Developments

Pty Ltd in respect of the rent for the premises This guarantee is supported by deposit of $26618 with Westpac Bank

Subsequent to the year end this guarantee has been released and the security deposit repaid to the Company

There are no contingent liabilities arising from service contracts with executives

25 Leases

Operating Leases Leasing arrangements

Operating leases relate to office facilities with lease terms of between to years remaining at balance date The Company
Consolidated Entity does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the end of the expiry term

Non-cancellable operating lease payments

Not longer than year

Longer than year and not longer than years

Longer than years

536294 169093 406915 67813

549304 3912527 78068 1247244

17 000 17 000 17 000 17 000

159837 100721 90117 67813

376457 68372 316798



Australia

Carnarvon Basin WA254P

Cannng Basin FF104/Ri

China

Bebu Gulf ock 22/12

626 665

23774277 14437525

244121 375185

Notes to the nanom Statements

26 Interests in Joint Venture Operations

The Consolidated Entity has an interesr in the foilowing materiai joint venture operations whose principal activities are oil and

gas production and/or exploration

Pcena9eofOutpit interest

10.71 10.71

8.00 8.00

5.00 500

Senegal

Rut sque Offshore Sangomar Offshore Sangomar Deep Offshore 90.00 30.00

In addition to the interests set out in the above table the Consolidated Entity holds working interests in numerous oil and gas

leases in the United States of America and Canada as more fully detailed in the Permit Listing following the Operations Review

section the Annua Report

The Companys and Consolidated Enttys interests in assets emp oyed in the above joint venture operations are detailed

below The amounts are included in the financial statements under their respective asset categories

Current Assets

Other assets

Non-Current Assets

Property plant and equ pment

Oil and gas propert es

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

60 207

366 545

24 477 652

943 965

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

13713848

27 Subsidiaries

The capital commitments arising from the Consolidated Entitys interests in joint ventures are disclosed in note 23

There are no contingent liabilities in respect of the Consolidated Entitys interest in joint ventures

Parent Entity

First Australian Resources mited ji

Subsidiaries

G2 Net Ptv Ltd liii

Humanot Pty Ltd iii

Austra Pty Ltd

Austra

Australia 100 100

Australia 100 100

Austral 100 100

First Australian Resources Inc USA 100 100
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27 Subsidiaries continued

First Australian Resources Limited is the Head Entity within the tax consolidated group

ii These companies are members of the tax consolidated group

iii These whollyowned controlled Entities have entered into deed of cross guarantee with First Australian Resources

Limited pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 and are relieved from the requirements to prepare and lodge an audited

financial report

The consolidated income statement and balance sheet of entities which are party to the deed of cross guarantee are

Income Statement

Revenues

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Exp oration expense

mpatrment of loans

Finance costs

Employee benefits expense

Consult ng expense

Foreign exchange gain loss

Other expenses _______________________________________________

Loss before income tax

Income tax expense ________________________________________

Loss for the year

Balance Sheet

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equ valents

Receivables

Other nancia assets

Other
_____________________________________________

Total Current Assets
_____________________________________________

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables

Other nancia assets

Property plant and equipment

Oil and gas properties __________________________________________
Total Non-Current Assets

________________________________________

TOTAL ASSETS __________________________________

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Provisions
___________________________________________________

Total Current Liabilities
__________________________________________

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provsions
________________________________________________

Total Non-Current Liabilities
__________________________________________

TOTAL LIABILITIES ____________________________________

NET ASSETS ____________________________________

EQUITY

ssued Capital

eserves

Accumu ated losses
__________________________________________

TOTAL EQUITY __________________________________

Accumulated Losses

Balance at beginning of financial year

Net Loss
__________________________________________

403 005

28 636

599 659

891 899

942 665

708 124

381 508

474 788

500 216

698 949

23 2871

565 888

866 716

342 1981

167 6101

884 184

533 926

174 914 684 860

174 914 684 860

6535417 7927573

59366 19581

48091 26618

10794 21 667

653 668 995 439

11 016163 10583752

005 446 005 446

55338 61715

14437525 13713848

26514472 25364781

33168140 33360220

849223 230179

390 000 001 706

167031 127646

6406254 5359531

29928

29 928

406 254 389 459

26 761 886 27 970 761

67 261 038 62 546 989

783535 531 535

42 282 677 36 107 763

26 761 896 27 970 761

36 107 763 31 422 903

6174914 4684860

42 282 677 36 107 763Balance ai end of financ al year
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28 Notes to the cash flow statement

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in banks and nvestments

money market instruments net of outstanding bank overdrafts Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

as shown in the cash flow statement are reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as follows

Cash and cash equiva ents

Non-cash financing and investing activities

During the financial year there were no non cash financing or investing activities

Financing facilities

Secured bank oan facity maturing 31 May 2009

whch may be extended by mutual agreement

amount used

amount unused

541 282

541 282 737 295

Prof it/foss for the period

Foregn exchange ga n/loss

Equity settled share-based payment

Exploraton expensed

lmpakment of loans

Interest income received

Accreton on convertib note

Increase/decrease in assets

Trade rece vables

Other financial assets

Other current assets

lncrease/decrease in liabilities

Non-current payables

Non-current prov sions

665 758

716 506

28 999

252 000

836 846

405 825

388 294

57 076

21 473

48 555

174 900

28 636

474 788

252 000

599 659

892 327

396 194

388 294

23 287

884 184

703 500

565 888

660 102

312 528

761 829 493 536

6761829 8493536 6535417 7927569

6535417 7927569

505 091

232 204

Cash balances not available for use

There are no restrictions on cash balances at the reporting date

Reconciliation of profit for the period to net cash flows from operating activities

Can on sale or disposal of non current assets

Depreciation and emortEsation of non-current assets

685 300713 500

642

656 868

924

703 500

580 946

677 280

312 528

15557 14281

21 473

579 10 873 10 976

Trade and other payables 326 288 37 807 17 884 587

Current provisions 39 385 103 049 39 385 103 049

26 352 49 385 29 928 51 442

636 721 036 207 903 993 804 690Net cash from operating activ ties
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29 Financial instruments

Capital risk management

The Company and Consolidated Entity manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern whilst

maintaining an optimal debt to equity balance The capital structure of the Company and Consolidated Entty consists of cash

and cash equivalents convertible loan notes and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent comprising issued capital

reserves and accumulated losses

Financial risk management objectives

The Company and Consolidated Entitys management provides services to the business co-ordinates access to domestic

and internationa financial markets and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company and

Consolidated Entity

The Company and Consolidated Entity does not enter into or trade financ al instruments ncluding derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company and Consolidated Entitys

policies approved by the board of Directors

The Company and Consolidated Entitys activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency

exchange rates and interest rates The Company and Consolidated Entity does not presently enter into derivative financial

instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted including the criteria for recognition the basis of

measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset financial

iability and equity instrument are disclosed in note to the financial statements

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and race vables

Financial liabilities

Amort sod cost 353 600 985 349 239 223 231 885

Foreign currency risk management

The Company and Consolidated Entity undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies hence exposures to

exchange rate fluctuations arise Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters which may include

forward foreign exchange contracts against specifc obligations denominated in foreign currency

The Company and Conso idated Entity may enter into forward fore gn exchange contracts to cover specific foreign currency

payments from time to time relating to specific dril ing obligations that are denominated in US dollars No forward foreign

currency contracts were entered into during the year

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

The Company and Consolidated Entity is mainly exposed to US dollars The following analysis details the Consolidated Entitys

and the Companys sensitvity to 10% increase and decrease in the Australian dollar against the US dollar The sensitivity

anays only includes outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end

or O0o change in fomign currency rates

At the reporting date if the Australian dollar had ncreased decreased by 10% against the us dollar

the Consolidated Entitys net oss after tax would ncrease decrease by $30363

6761 829 8493536 6535417 7927569

476148 344890 12129069 11635400

the Companys net loss after tax would increase decrease by $1 031833
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29 Financial instruments continued

Commodity price risk management

The Company and Consolidated Entitys 01 and gas production is sold at spot price and hence has exposure to commodity

price fluctuations No forward commodity price contracts were entered into during the year

Commodity price sensitivity analysis

The following analysis details the Consolidated Entitys and the Companys sensitivity to 0o increase and decrease in the

average commodity price during the year

If the average commodity prices during the year had increased decreased by 10%

the Consolidated Entitys net loss after tax would decrease increase by $267358

the Companys net loss after tax would decrease increase by $nil

Liquidity risk management

The Company and Consolidated Entity manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves banking facilities and reserve

borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial

assets and liabilities

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Company and Consolidated Entitys remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial

assets and liabilities The tables have been prepared based on the undiscounted cash flows expected to be received paid

by the Company and Consolidated Entity

Financial assets

Non- nterest bearing

Variable interest rate 5.16

Financial liabilities

Non-interest bearng

Variable interest rate

xed nterest rate

2007

Financial assets

Non- nterest bear ng

Variable nterest rate 6.68

Financial liabilities

Non-interest beartng

Variab interest rate

xed nterest rate

245 275

6029174

274 449

266 748

6029174

295 922

Consolidated

whthi
_________

average
effective Less than

tnterest rate month

months

to year

21 473

375

10.00

21473

442318 422318

549 740 549 740

5434917 5434917

6877235 549740 14400 7406975

318272 318272

2789051 5750000 27952 8567003

3107323 5750000 27952 8885275

478 552 478 552

523 674 523 674

5973917 5973917

478552 523674 5973917 6976143

8.83

10.00
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29 Financial instruments continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables continued

Financial guarantee contracts relate to the guarantee over the US loan facility refer note 16

12 043 085

12043 085

Interest rate risk management

The Consolidated Entity is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at floating interest rates The Consolidated Entity

also earns interest at floating rates from its cash and cash equivalents

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following analysis details the Consolidated Entitys and the Companys sensitivity to 10% increase and decrease in the

average interest rate during the year

If the average interest rate during the year had increased decreased by 10%

the Consolidated Entitys net loss after tax would decrease increase by $40583

Company

Weighted

average

effective Less than

interest rate month Total

652 728

026 618

679 346

2008

Financial assets

Non-interest bearing

Variable interest rate

Financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing

Axed interest rate

Anancial guarantee

contracts

2007

Financial assets

Non-interest bearing

Variable interest rate

Financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing

Fixed interest rate

Financial guarantee

contracts

12 695 813

6026618

18722431

5.16

10.00

6.79

10.00

849 223 849 223

5434917 5434917

6284140 6284140

19581 11589201 11608782

223 084 750 000 27 952 001 036

2242665 5750000 27952 11 589201 19609818

230179 230179

5973917 5973917

230179 5973917 6204096

the Companys net loss after tax would decrease increase by $39619
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29 Financial instruments continued

Credit risk management

Trade accounts receivable presently consist of several established customers spread across the oil and gas industry in the

USA segment The system for disbursements for oil and gas sales is well developed and there have been no defaults over

period exceeding 15 years in which the Consolidated Entity functions

The Consolidated Entity does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of

counterparties having similar characteristics The credit risk on liquid funds and financial instruments is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies The carrying amount of

financial assets recorded in the financial statements net of any allowances for losses represents the Consolidated Entitys

maximum exposure to credit risk

Fair value of financial instruments

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements

approximates their fair values 2007 net fair value

30 Share-based payments

Employee share option plan

Whilst the Consolidated Entity does not have formal ownership-based compensation scheme for employees including

directors of the company certain share options have been granted to executives in accordance with resolution of shareholders

at the AGM of the Company held on 28 May 2007 Each executive share option converts into one ordinary share of the

Company on exercise No amounts have been paid or are payable by the recipient upon receipt of the options The options

neither carry rights to dividends nor voting rights Options may be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date

of their expiry

The following table reconciles the outstanding share options granted to key management at the beginning and end of the

financial year

Executive share options

Balance at beginning of the financial year 500 000 865 313

Exercised during the financial year 865 313

Granted during the financial year 500 000

Ba ance at the end of the financial year Ui 500 000 500 000

Options exorcised durthg the financial year

No options were exercised during the current financial year

ii Options granted during the financial year

No options were issued to directors or employees during the current financial year

ii Balance at the end of the fThancial year

The share options outstanding at the end of the financial year had an exercise price of $0.15 2007 $0.15 and remaining

contractual life of 577 days 2006 943 days

Services Received

On the 14 March 2008 the Company allotted 6000000 incentive options to consultant in lieu of consultancy fees The

options are exercisable at $0.14 on or before March 2011 None of these options have been exercised at the date of this

report

The options package has been valued at $252000 for accounting purposes using the Black Scholes model The financial

effect of the option issue has been recognised as share-based payments expense in Consulting Expenses in the current

financial year income statement
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30 Share-based payments continued

Services Received continued

The following inputs have been used to calculate the fair value of these options at grant date

Number granted 000 000

Grant date 14 March 2008

Grant date shara pr ce 10 cents

Exercise price 14 cents

Expected volatilty 7Oo

Option ife 082 days

Risk free nterest rate 7.250o

Fair value per opt on 4.2 cents

In addition to the options discussed above further 3500000 options ssued to consultants in prior years as share-based

payments remain unexercised at balance date Further information concerning these options is set out in note 19

31 Key management personnel compensation

Details of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Consolidated Entity during the year were

Evans Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Cavness Non-Executive rector

Brindal Non Executive Director Company Secretary

Grigor Non-Execut ye Director resigned April 2008

Harper Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary

Atling Administration Manager Australia

Adessa Administration Manager USA

Key management personnel compensation

The aggregate compensation of the key management personnel of the Consolidated Entity and the Company is set out

below

703 500

835792 443389 706410

Short-term employee benefits

Post employment benefits

Share-based payment

Iota

736 644 574 802 607 262 432 727

99148 165087 99148 165087

703 500

301 314
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32 Related Party Disclosures

Equity Interests in related parties

Equity interests in subsidiaries

Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in subsidiaries are disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements

Equity Interests in associates and joint ventures

Details of interests in joint ventures are discussed in note 26

Key management personnel compensation

Details of key management personnel compensation are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements

Key management personnel equity holdings

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

Received on

Exercise of Net Other Balance

Options Change iv 31112108

Specified Directors

Evans 225 450 225 450

Cavness 150 000 1150 000

Brindal 29 000 29 000

Grigori 10 080 548 10 080 548

Specified Executives

CjHarper

Atling 883 575 883 575

Adessa 601 601

Received on

Exorcise of Net Other Balance

Options Change iv 31/12/07

000 000 000 000 225 450

000000 1150000

Brindal 29 000 29 000

Grigor 580 548 500 000 10 080 548

Specified Executives

Harper ui

JAAtling 4813575 70000 4883575

RAdessa 365313 362712 2601

Resigned April 2008

Appointed 19 December 2007

iii Appointed August 2007

iv Net other changes comprise shares purchased and sod In respect of Brindal net other change represents the

holding at the date of his appointment as director In respect of Grigor net other change includes his holding at

the date of his resignation as director

Specified Directors

Evans 225 450

Cavness 150 000
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December 2003

32 Related Party Disclosures continued

Share Options

Options

Balance Granted as Options Net Other Balance

2008 1/1/08 Compensation Exercised Change iv 31/12/08

Specified Directors

Evans 5000000 000 000

Gayness 000 000 000 000

AEBrindal

Grigori 500 000 500 000

Specified Executives

Harper 500 000 500 000

JAAtling

Adessa 500 000 500 000

Options

Balance Granted as Options Net Other Balance

2007 1/1/07 Compensation Exercised Change iv 31/12/07

Specified Directors

Evans 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000

Gayness 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000

Brindal ii

Grigor 500 000 500 000 500 000 500 000

Specified Executives

Harper iii
500 000 500 000

JAAtIing

RAdessa 365313 500000 365313 500000

Resigned April 2008

ii Appointed 19 December 2007

iii Appointed August 2007

iv In respect of Grigor net other change represents his holding at the date of his resignation as director

All options vested at grant date and were exercisable at the balance date

Further details of share options granted to directors and executives during the year have been disclosed at note 30 to the

financial statements

Transactions with the Directors of the Consolidated Entity

Fees of $25000 2007 $22500 were paid to Mr Grigor for the provision of financial advice and public relations representation

based on normal terms and conditions

Controlling Entity

The Parent Entity in the Consolidated Entity is First Australian Resources Ltd Both the ultimate Parent Entity and the ultimate

Australian Entity in the wholly owned group is First Australian Resources Limited Related party receivable balances are

disclosed in notes 10 and 11 of the financial report
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33 Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the financial year end

The convertible note maturing on 31 January 2009 was repaid in full

On 23 January 2009 placement of 28850000 shares was issued at 2.6 cents per share raising $750100

before costs

On 10 February 2009 6633533 new convertible notes were issued at 45 cents each raising $2985090 before costs

Each convertible note carries coupon rate of 15 percent payable quarterly in arrears and is convertible into 10 ordinary

shares on or before 31 January 2012 by payment of 4.5 cents per share The convertible notes have been quoted on the

ASX further 4050 convertible notes were issue on the same terms and conditions on 26 February 2009 raising an

additional $2025 before costs

On 10 February 2009 14000000 options exercisable at cents any time on or before 30 June 2012 were issued to

consultants in lieu of advisory fees

The Company has executed an Agreement with Shell Exploration Company By Shell to conduct an exploration program

in respect of the Companys exploration blocks offshore Senegal Under the Agreement which is subject to regulatory

approvals Shell will fund CSEM Data Acquisition and Geophysical Evaluation Programme over part of the Licence Area

where number of drilling prospects have already been identified by FAR and its partner Petrosen The objective of the

program is designed to enable Shell to determine whether or not to exercise an Option to acquire 70 percent interest in

the block and enter the second renewal period that includes well commitment FAR will benefit from an exploration well

carry up to costs of US$6smillion and retain 20 percent in the event that Shell elects to enter the second renewal period

If Shell exercises the option but subsequently elects not to proceed to drill well FAR will retain its 90 percent interest

Licence to use the CSEM data and be free to negotiate with other potential farminees Under the Agreement FAR will

recoup approximately US$3.4 million in past expenditures regardless of the outcome of the study and further US$6

million in the event the drilling of well leads to commercial development

On 26 March 2009 the Company announced placement of 70000000 shares at cents per share to raise $3500000

before costs

The financial effect of the above has not been recognised in the current financial year

Other than as stated in this note the Directors are not aware of any other matters or circumstances at the date of this report

other than those referred to in this report that have significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations the results

of the operations or the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity in subsequent financial years

34 Remuneration of auditors

Consolidated Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Auditor of the Parent Entity

Audit or review of the tinancial report 44 500 42 500 33 118 29 066

Taxation services

44500 42500 33118 29066

The auditor of the Consolidated Entity is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Substantial shareholders

No notifications of substantial shareholders have been received by the Company

Top Twenty Shareholders Number of Shares Percentage

HSBC Custody Nominees Australia Limited

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

National Nominees Limited

Woodlands Asset Management Pty Ltd

Jemaya Pty Ltd

BT Portfolio Services Limited

ANZ Nominees Limited

Tevlo Pty Ltd

Forty Traders Limited

Melanie Maree Herpen

Douglas Michael Grant Sharon Leigh Grant

David John Hanks

Dean Andrew Herpen

St Mellions Inc

UBS Nominees Pty Ltd

Sandra Lambeth

William Douglas Goodfellow

Beniamin Dark

Gregorach Pty Ltd

Trevor Michael Hing

25274988 4.39

19349313 3.36

16889284 2.93

13427692 2.33

8800000 1.53

6845000 1.19

6653721 1.16

6225450 1.08

5756092 1.00

5500000 0.96

4910000 0.85

4800500 0.83

4500000 0.78

4050000 0.70

4039354 0.70

3644840 0.63

3281000 0.57

3080000 0.54

3015240 0.52

3000000 0.52

153042474 26.57

Number of holders of equity securities

Ordinary shares

At 19 March 2009 the issued capital comprised of 575878344 ordinary shares held by 4233 holders

Convertible Notes

At 19 March 2009 there were 6638033 fully paid 15% convertible notes held by 40 holders Each note converts to 10 shares

Notes do not carry the right to vote

Unlisted Options

At 19 March 2009 there were 33000000 unlisted options of various exercise prices and expiry dates held by holders

Each option converts to one share Options do not carry the right to vote

Spread details as at 19 March 2009

1000

1001 5000

5001 10000

10001 100000

100001 andover

Ordinary Shares Convertible Notes

Number of Holders Number of Holders

Holding less than marketable parcel

342

478 22

491 14

2057
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HSBC Custody Nominees Australia Limited

Woodlands Asset Management Pty Ltd

Ian Michael Paterson Parker Catriona Sylvia Parker

Zen Asset Management Pty Ltd

Jemaya Pty Ltd

Stephanie Wall

Philip Wall

Gunz Pty Ltd

Barry Cohn Humfrey Mary Jean Humfrey

Roseland Asset Pty Ltd

Kenesta Pty Ltd

Gould Nominees Pty Ltd

Liudmila lvanovna Nokhova

Hendricus Pty Ltd

Dodge Dad Investments Pty Ltd

Denis Patrick Waddell Francine Louise Waddell

Tarney Holdings Pty Ltd

Aceriver Pry Ltd

LV Zannovich Pty Ltd

Nina Michelle Ricketts

5555555

800000

53338

26722

13600

10000

10000

7300

7000

7000

7000

7000

7000

6800

6666

6000

6000

5000

5000

83.69

12.05

0.80

0.40

0.21

0.15

0.15

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.11

010

0.10

0.09

0.09

0.08

0.08

tre en her irn

Top Twenty Noteholders Number of Notes Percentage

5000 0.08

6551981 98.70
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